Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Health, Schools and Care Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Thursday, 9th September, 2021
6.00 pm.
Hollingworth (Room 108ABC), First Floor,
Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Minutes

3-5

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Schools and
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 8th July 2021
3

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

4

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

6

3rd & 4th Quarter Social Care Complaints
To consider social care related complaints received in the second two

6 - 25

quarters of 2020/2021.
7

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2021-22:
Quarter 1 Performance Update

26 - 63

To consider the performance of the Adults, Children’s and Public Health
Directorate in the first quarter 2021/2022.

8

Establishment of Shadow System Board
Report of the Director of Strategic Commissioning (DASS)

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Patricia Mary Dale
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor Iram Faisal
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Kieran Heakin
John Mcgrath
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
For more information about this meeting, please contact
Alison James
01706 924711
alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk

64 - 78

Agenda Item 2
HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 8 July 2021
PRESENT: Councillor Dutton (Chair) Councillors Dale, Davidson, Faisal,
James Gartside, Hartley, Heakin, Sheerin and Sullivan
OFFICERS: T. Harrison (Assistant Director – Commissioning), M. Garraway
(Committee & Consititution
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Mr McGrath (co-opted member)
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Emsley
1

MINUTES
RESOLVED
That the minutes of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held on the 18 February 2021 be approved as a correct record.

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

3

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022
Consideration was given to the proposed work programme for the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee for 2021/22.
Members were advised that the work programme could be widened should
there be further items that required consideration by the Committee
throughout the Municipal year. Developments in the Locality Construct would
likely require specific consideration as the governance structure was
developed.
RESOLVED
That the work programme be accepted.

4

LOCALITY CONSTRUCT UPDATE
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Adults and
Social Care / Director of Commissioning detailing work undertaken to prepare
for the implementation of the Government paper ‘Integrating Care: Next steps
to building strong and effective integrated care systems across England” and
subsequent White Paper published in February 2021.
It was stated that one of the key elements outlined was the “Principle of
Subsidiarity” which descried the requirement for more functions and resources
to be devolved from national and regional levels to local systems to ensure:
 decisions are taken closer to communities
 collaboration between partners in a place

Page 3



collaboration between providers.

A final proposal for the model in Rochdale was dependent on interaction
between the Greater Manchester and those of boarding authorities. n line
with further guidance and working across Greater Manchester, the North East
Sector and our Rochdale system the Rochdale Locality Construct has been
developed with the following three key elements
 System Board: Responsible for setting the strategic direction for
the locality and the board this paper seeks to establish in
shadow form
 Local Care Organisation Board: Already established bringing
together provider and commissioner partners from across health
and care, including the voluntary sector, to deliver services in
the best way to improve outcomes for the population.
 Neighbourhoods: Integrating services around local people,
creating a system of multi-agency professionals from all public
services working together. Delivery will be person-centred and
take a proactive and preventative approach, intervening early
and responding to the person in the context of their community
Four key subgroups would be established to support the Shadow System
Board to deliver its functions:
 People and Place Partnership
 Quality and Safety Committee
 Finance, Performance and Risk Committee
 Workforce
Each of the four sub-groups would sit outside formal Council decision making.
Members were requested to consider the proposed governance structure, the
role of the statutory Health and Wellbeing Board and the impact on delivery of
services.
RESOLVED
That the report be noted and updates be provided to future meetings.
5

ADULT, CHILDREN & PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE PLANS 2020-21:
QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s
Services and Education / Cabinet Member for Adult Care and Wellbeing /
Director of Children’s Services / Director of Commissioning / Director of Public
Health, which set out progress towards achievement of the targets contained
in the Adult Care Directorate Plan 2020-21, Children’s Services Directorate
Plan 2020-21 and Public Health Directorate Plan 2020-21
In considering the Children’s Services Directorate Plan the Committee
considered the sought clarification on the number of external care placements
were currently outside the borough. In relation to home schooled children,
Members sought clarification on how many were taught by private tuition and
how that was funded.

Page 4

RESOLVED
The report be noted.
6

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration
of the following five items of business, in accordance with the provisions of
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. Reason for
the resolution Should the press and public remain during debate on these
three items there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be
exempt under Parts 1 and 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972.

7

LINK4LIFE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT UPDATE AND CONTRACT
EXTENSION
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Health and
Wellbeing / Assistant Director of Commissioning detailing an update on the
progress being made on the review of the partnership arrangements between
the Council and Your Trust (formally Link4Life) and to highlight key changes
and associated risks.
RESOLVED
That Cabinet be informed that the Health, Schools and Care Overview and
Scrutiny Committee support the recommendations contained within the
submitted report.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

9th September 2021
Cabinet Member for Adult
Care and Wellbeing,
Cabinet Member for
Children’s Services and
Education
Theresa Edwards
Public

3rd & 4th Quarter Social Care Complaints
Executive Summary
1.

The report provides Members with a summary of Adult and Children’s Social
Care complaints and compliments received during the second half of 2020/21.
Recommendation

2.

It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise
the information contained in the report and assess whether further
information or explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in
the report.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the
Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement.
Key Points for Consideration

Page 6

4.

Appendix 1 to the report provides a brief commentary relating to complaints
dealt with under the relevant complaints procedure by Adult Social Care and
Children’s Social Care Services during the 3rd and 4th quarters of 2020/21.
Appendix 1 also includes examples of how an individual complaint has been
dealt with from receipt to resolution as requested by Members at a previous
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.
Appendix 2 provides details of complaints in graph form. The format of the
report includes information on trends, and the graphs display trend analysis
for each quarter in the reporting period.
Adult Social Care complaint figures will also include details of any
complaints regarding financial assessments received during the reporting
period. This is a function carried out by the Revenues and Benefits Service.
The Customer Feedback Team are working with services to improve the
quality of information recorded, and to ensure lessons are being learnt from
complaints and action taken is recorded and reported.
To improve complaints monitoring, the Customer Feedback Team also
provides weekly status reports to Directors / Assistant Directors to enable
closer monitoring of current complaints.

4.1

Alternatives Considered
None. Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system
which is used to record complaints and compliments received by social care
services.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.

Appropriate financial redress was made following the outcome of two Adult
Social Care complaints relating to client contribution of ‘Top Up’ fees.
Short term care fees were waived as a gesture of goodwill following the
outcome of an Adult Social Care complaint which was upheld.
Complaints considered at stage two or stage three of the Children’s Social
Care complaints procedure have financial implications due to the statutory
requirement to appoint an external Independent Person and in some cases
an external Investigating Officer at stage two, and three independent people
to sit on a Review Panel at stage three. All costs associated with Children’s
Social Care complaints incurred throughout the year are included in the
Children’s Social Care Annual Complaints Report.
Risk and Policy Implications

Page 7

6.

There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from
this report.
Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local
Government & Social Care Ombudsman for up to twelve months from
completion of the Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk
that the outcome of a future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint
may result in a recommended financial remedy. Complaints considered
by the Ombudsman are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee
annually on receipt of the Ombudsman’s annual report.
Consultation

7.

Not applicable.

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

None.

For Further Information Contact:

Theresa Edwards, 01706 923547,
theresa.edwards@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 8

Appendix 1

Complaint Statistics
Adult Social Care
In June 2007 the Department of Health provided a set of proposals to unify and
reform the current arrangements for making complaints across Health and Adult
Social Care; ‘Making Experiences Count.’ As well as fulfilling the commitment in 'Our
Health, Our Care, Our Say', it proposed a radical new approach to complaints
handling which is more flexible and supports organisational learning.
The formalised guidance for the new arrangements was published on 25 February
2009; ‘Listening, Responding, Improving’ and the Regulations were laid before
Parliament on 27 February 2009 for councils and health organisations to implement
from 1 April 2009.
These Regulations enshrine a duty to co-operate with health partners in relation to
complaints that cut across Health and Social Care Services.
The Council introduced a joint complaints process for dealing with Health and Adult
social care complaints from 1 April 2009. It relates to concerns received from this
date onwards and is in line with the Making Experiences Count initiative.
Where a complaint is received about Adult Social Care Services functions or functions
of any party to the Joint Protocol (i.e. Health Partners) the organisation which
receives the complaint handles the co-ordination of the complaint.
The process for dealing with Adult Social Care complaints is a one stage process. If
the complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint they may
refer their concerns for consideration by the Local Government & Social Care
Ombudsman.
Not all complaints received by Adult Care are eligible to be considered under the
statutory procedure, and where a complaint does not meet the criteria, it will be
considered under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure. Details of Adult
Care complaints considered under both procedures will be included in this report.
27 new complaints were received by Adult Care Services during the second half of
2020-21. Details of these complaints and their outcomes can be found below.
The types of complaints received
17 new complaints were received during the third quarter
1 complaint was upheld:
 Disagreement with payment contribution of ‘Top Up’ fees due to standard of
care provided to service user whilst in care home.
8 complaints were partially upheld:
 Miscommunication regarding service user’s ‘Top Up’ fees and client
contribution.
 Concerns regarding policy for cash budget not to be used to pay family
member living in the same household.
 Complaint relates to an outstanding invoice for personal budget care package
for care services which service user did not receive.
 Standard of care provided to service user whilst in care home.

Page
1 9

Appendix 1





Lack of communication and management of debt recovery process regarding
outstanding care charges.
Concerns regarding arrangements in place by care provider to provide
essentials for service user during pandemic restrictions.
Management of service users care assessment and support package.
Concerns that changes to service user’s well-being and safety not reflected in
the care plan.

8 complaints were not upheld.
10 new complaints were received during the fourth quarter
1 complaint was upheld:
 Standard of service provided to service user by care home.
4 complaints were partially upheld:
 Social worker’s handling of assessment process.
 Lack of communication / information regarding service users care charges.
 Concerns regarding content of assessment for service user and insufficient
updates provided to family in respect of placement move to care home.
 Length of time service user was in care accommodation resulting in associated
costs.
4 complaint was not upheld.
1 complaint is still ongoing.
Examples of Action Taken and Lessons Learned
Third Quarter
Further to the upheld complaint relating to the concerns raised about disagreement
with payment contribution of ‘Top Up’ fees due to standard of care provided to service
use the following actions were taken:
 Care Home developed information which could be provided to families when a
person first moves in to ensure they have all of the relevant information
available and that this is provided in a clear format to prevent any
misunderstandings of this nature in the future.
 The Quality Assurance Team visited the care home to look at the areas of
concerns raised in the complaint and any training needs were explored as part
of the Team’s input.
 Managers within the Pennine Locality to re-screen the priority of cases waiting
for allocation on a weekly basis.
 Following considering of the complaint, the Investigation Officer has requested
for an adjustment with regards to the outstanding care charges to reflect the
concerns raised.
Following the complaint regarding the outstanding invoice for personal budget care
package, it was confirmed that Adult Care had not been informed the personal
assistant support had ended resulting in cash budgets still being sent. It was identified
there had been a clerical error relating to the final audit and invoice in applying the
end date of the cash budget. This was discussed with the officer in question and the

Page2 10

Appendix 1
Team Leader reviewed the process within the team to identify any improvements,
therefore, complaint is partially upheld.
An apology was given in response to the complaint relating to lack of communication
regarding the debt recovery process. The Service has acknowledged there was a
delay in informing the complainant the service user’s benefit payments had been
frozen and apologised to the complainant for not contacting them sooner.
Fourth Quarter
Following the upheld complaint regarding standard of service provided to service user
by the care home, the Quality Assurance Team undertook visits to the care home to
complete audits and spot checks as part of the service's continuous monitoring of
care homes within the Rochdale Borough. Any further concerns which may have
been identified would be progressed accordingly via a Section 42 Safeguarding
Enquiry or a Multi-Agency Concerns meetings where appropriate. The Service
arranged for the short term care charges to be waivered due to the concerns that had
been identified.
As a result of the complaint relating to handling of the assessment process a review
of the case was conducted with the relevant practitioner to identify any learning
opportunities for clearer communication. This was also raised with managers and
staff for further reflection in an attempt to ensure change and improve practice and
people’s experiences when using Adult Care Services.
Further to the partially upheld complaint regarding insufficient updates provided to the
family in respect of placement move to care home, the concerns were discussed with
the Locality Team to remind staff to maintain regular contact with families during
placement moves.
Timescales
There is no statutory timescale for dealing with Adult Social Care complaints, and the
timescale is agreed between the Investigator and the complainant in each case.
However, the aim is to complete investigations within 25 working days. The average
time taken to deal with Adult Care complaints closed during the second half of 202021 was 21.5 working days which was well within target.
Complaint Example
The following is an example of a how an Adult Social Care complaint has been dealt
with from receipt to resolution.
Complaint
A complaint was received by the Service from an Advocate of a service user. The
concerns related to the service user receiving invoices for care services which were
no longer being provided. An acknowledgement was sent to the complainant and the
complaint was passed to the Head of Service to be allocated for investigation.
The Head of Service allocated this to the Team Manager for investigation and the
Team Manager corresponded with the Advocate to confirm the service user’s points
of complaint and expected outcomes.

Page
3 11

Appendix 1
An investigation was undertaken into the issues raised, which included interviewing
staff and reviewing information held on the case file.
The investigation was completed within timescale, and the overall finding was that the
complaint was partially upheld.
A report was produced detailing the findings of the investigation and the actions taken
as a result of the complaint. A copy of the report was provided to the complainant
together with a covering letter which included an apology for the points of complaint
that were upheld. The complainant was thanked for raising the issues and providing
the opportunity for recommendations within the administration process for personal
budgets to be made for service improvement.

Compliments
Compliments received from service users are also recorded and shared with staff. A
total of 28 compliments were recorded for Adult Care Services during this reporting
period, a breakdown and examples of which can be found below.
Team/Service Area
STARS

No.
12

Assessment & Support Planning

7

Home Improvement Agency

2

Compliment received from
Service User (8)
Relative of Service User (4)
Relative of Service User (6)
Professional (1)
Service User

West Locality Team

2

Professional

Occupational Therapy

1

Relative of Service User

Central Locality Team

1

Relative of Service User

East Locality Team

1

Service User

Heywood Locality Team

1

Relative of Service User

Pennine Locality Team

1

Service User

“I wanted to send you a card to say thank you for your wonderful care and support to
us all. You were so helpful to us as I felt we were sinking at times. You gave me a lot
of knowledge, confidence and understanding. In a word - Angel.”
Compliment for STARS Team
“I have had a shower room put in my flat and I would like to say everyone on the team
were so professional, kind, and considerate. They went above and beyond to put me
at ease from start to finish. Well done lads.”
Home Improvement Agency
I would like to make sure that the Assessment and Support Planner from the Adult
Care Team is commended, as in my opinion she has gone above and beyond in the

Page4 12

Appendix 1
help that she gave me and my daughter. She is a credit to the team and a wonderful
human being. I find it very difficult to talk with strangers but she was so pleasant, and
friendly I soon felt as though I had known her for years, she put me at almost
complete ease. Please tell her that her efforts were sincerely appreciated.”
Compliment for Assessment & Support Planning Team
“A big thank you for all your help. You have been a life line for me and good
company.”
Compliment for STARS Team
“I would like to thank the Social Worker for his hard work in supporting me into an
independent living supported tenancy.”
Compliment for Pennine Locality Team
“Recently a member of your Team engaged with us over an issue for re-assessing X
for his bathing slings. The Occupational Therapist was very professional in her
approach towards our situation, arranged to visit at a convenient time to suit
ourselves, carried out her assessment, we were very comfortable in her company and
within several days the slings were with us, there was another request the
Occupational Therapist dealt with for us, which was to have removed a ceiling track
hoist from our dining room of which X no longer uses, the timescale from her initial
involvement to the hoist being removed was approximately 2 weeks, fantastic. Praise
were it is due, the Occupational Therapist is an asset to your Team.”
Compliment for Occupational Therapy Team

Page
5 13

Appendix 1

Children’s Social Care
Changes were made to the children’s social services representations procedure as a
result of the Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000, Adoption and Children Act 2002 and
the Health and Social Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2003.
Complaints are dealt with in accordance with The Children Act 1989 Representations
Procedure (England) Regulations 2006.
The handling and consideration of complaints under this procedure consists of three
stages:
Stage 1 - Local Resolution
Stage 2 - Investigation
Stage 3 - Review Panel
Local Resolution requires the local authority to resolve a complaint as close to the
point of contact with the child or young person as possible (i.e. through front line
management of the service). In doing so the local authority should consider the
wishes of the complainant about how the complaint should be dealt with. In most
circumstances complaints should be considered at Stage 1 in the first instance.
Consideration of complaints at Stage 2 is normally achieved through an investigation
conducted by an investigating officer and an independent person. Stage 2
commences either when the complainant requests it after an investigation at Stage 1,
or where the complainant and the local authority have agreed that Stage 1 is not
appropriate.
Where Stage 2 of the complaints procedure has been concluded and the complainant
is still dissatisfied, he/she will be eligible to request further consideration of the
complaint by a Review Panel. It is not possible to review a complaint that has not yet
been fully considered at Stage 2 (including providing the reports and adjudication to
the complainant).
Following the conclusion of all three stages of the complaints process, if the
complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint they may refer
their concerns for consideration by the Local Government & Social Care
Ombudsman.
Information relating to Children’s Social Care complaints is available on the Council’s
website, and leaflets providing full details of the complaints process and how to raise
concerns are provided as required. The Children’s Rights Service has also
developed complaints leaflets specifically for children in care.
Not all complaints received by Children’s Social Care are eligible to be considered
under the statutory procedure, and where a complaint does not meet the criteria, it will
be considered under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure. Details of
complaints considered under both procedures will be included in this report.
A total of 19 new complaints were received by Children’s Services in the second half
of 2020-21, all of which were dealt with under the statutory Children’s Social Care
complaints procedure.
Where possible concerns are resolved by the service informally without progressing
to a formal complaint, which is beneficial to the complainant and contributes to a
reduction in the number of formal complaints being received.

Page6 14

Appendix 1
Details of the complaints and their outcomes can be found below.
The types of complaints received
7 new complaints were received during the third quarter
6 new complaints were considered at stage one
1 complaint was upheld:
 Social Worker’s handling of complainant’s confidential information.
2 complaints were partially upheld:
 Actions of Children’s Social Care / Social Worker when working with the family
with regards to child protection procedures.
 Lack of support from Social Worker and handling of complainant’s son’s
personal information.
3 complaints were not upheld.
1 complaint was dealt with direct at stage 2 due to the complexity of the case,
however, the complaint was later withdrawn.
12 new complaints were received during the fourth quarter
12 new complaints were considered at stage one
5 complaints were partially upheld:
 Delay in family contact sessions being arranged and concerns regarding
support from foster carers.
 Sharing of information held by the Early Help and Schools team with the family
and school.
 Decision for young person to move into full time foster care.
 Lack of care and support from residential placement 'Our Place'.
 Lack of communication / support for looking after grandchild and decision by
Children’s; Social Care to close the case.
6 complaints were not upheld.
1 complaint is currently on hold as the Head of Service has been in correspondence
with the complainant with a view to arranging a meeting date to discuss the concerns.
1 complaint was received at stage two
1 complaint was partially upheld:
 Lack of care and support from residential placement from 'Our Place'.
Examples of Action Taken and Lessons Learned

Third Quarter

Page
7 15

Appendix 1
As a result of the complaint relating to handling confidential information, this was
investigated appropriately and necessary action was taken. The outcome was shared
with colleagues within the Service to highlight the impact this can have from both
individuals and procedural elements.
An apology was given in response to an unfair statement made by the Service with
regards to the decision for the children to have contact with their parent as part of the
child protection process.
Following the complaint regarding the handling of the young person’s personal
information it was established from the investigation there had been a data breach.
The social worker updated their data protection training and lessons from this were
shared with other social workers to highlight that they should be taking more care
when sending out information via the postal route.
Fourth Quarter
Following the concerns raised regarding support from foster carers, it had been
acknowledged that some health appointments had been missed when the children
were in foster care. This was due to the appointment letters being sent to the parent’s
address rather than the address of the foster carer’s. The Service have apologised for
this and the issue was rectified at the time.
Further to the complaint relating to lack of communication / support to the complainant
looking after grandchild, the Practice Manager arranged a Child in Need meeting to
discuss the plan for the young person and multiagency decision around threshold for
continued involvement. Practice Manager has also spoken with the Social Worker to
ensure regular face to face home visits are completed whilst the case is open to
Children’s Social Care.
As a result of the partially upheld complaint for the ‘Our Place’ placement, the
Practice Manager has arranged for the team to take part in a training session in
Autism awareness, supporting young people with a diagnosis of Autism and enabling
staff to communicate effectively with young people. Individual staff members will be
supported through supervision to review outreach support and its effectiveness in
addition to the care planning process with the allocated social worker.
Timescales
There are statutory timescales for dealing with Children’s Social Care complaints at
each stage of the process. Every attempt is made to resolve complaints within the
initial timescale; however, the regulations allow the timescale for each stage to be
extended in consultation with the complainant.
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

10 working days (can be extended to up to a maximum of 20 working
days)
25 working days (can be extended up to a maximum of 65 working
days)
Acknowledgement within 2 working days, review to be held within 30
working days.

Page8 16

Appendix 1
19 of the complaints received during the third and fourth quarters were dealt with
under the statutory Social Care complaints procedure at stage one, 11 of which were
responded to within the statutory timescale and 1 complaint was withdrawn.
Complaint Example
The following is an example of a how a Children’s Social Care complaint has been
dealt with from receipt to resolution.
Stage one complaint
A complaint was received by the Customer Feedback Team via email. The complaint
was from a parent and related to a lack of support from the Social Worker and
handling of complainant’s son’s personal information.
The complaint was registered at stage one of the statutory complaints procedure and
was allocated to a Practice Manager for investigation. An acknowledgement was sent
to the complainant.
The Practice Manager spoke with the complainant to discuss the concerns raised and
the complainant provided a more detailed written version of the complaint. The
Practice Manager had previously spoken with the complainant regarding similar
issues, however, the complainant raised further concerns within their formal
complaint.
A full investigation was undertaken including discussing the case with the Social
Worker and the Head of Service. The findings of the investigation were that the Social
Worker had acted appropriately in supporting the family, however, it was confirmed
there had been a data breach where information had been shared regarding the
young person. The Social Worker updated their data protection training and lessons
from this were shared with other social workers to highlight that extra care needs to
be taken when sending information.
The Practice Manager arranged for the case to be allocated to a new Social Worker,
as per the complainant’s request. The complaint was found to be partially upheld and
was resolved at stage one.
Details of the action taken as a result of the complaint are also included under
‘Lessons Learned’ above.

Compliments
Compliments received from service users are also recorded and shared with staff. 28
compliments were recorded for Children’s Social Care Services during the second
half of 2020-21, a breakdown and examples of which can be found below.
Team/Service Area
Child Protection & Court Team
First Response Team

No.
19
3

Compliment received from
Professional (15)
Parent (4)
Professional (2)
Grandparent (1)

Page
9 17

Appendix 1
Cared for Children

1

Parent

Family Time Facilitator

1

Foster Carer

Residential Childcare Worker Our Place’
Occupational
Therapist
–
Children with Disabilities
Assessment & Review Officer –
Childrenwith Disabilities
Youth Service

1

Parent

1

Parent

1

Grandparent

1

Foster Carer

“I just wanted to take a moment to say a massive well done to the Social Worker for
the work she has completed in regards to the above young person it is clear from the
report and professional feedback that the Social Worker has gone above and beyond
to support this parent, It was very refreshing for a parent to be able to verbalise in the
child’s Cared for review how a social worker has supported and affected change in
her life. This parent was able to pin point the turning point in regards to the direct work
the Social Worker has completed with her in which she spoke openly about how this
work has impacted on her understanding of why CSC became involve.”
Compliment for Child Protection & Court Team
“Just want to feed back in what a great Practice Manager Z is. She really does
understand X’s context and risk. In every case I've been involved with her and her
team, they're forward thinking and quick to respond. Great discussions and actions
always come from their strategy meetings. They often contact me and seek advice
early on, so we can work together. I really appreciate all the work they put in, just
want that to reach the right person.”
Compliment for First Response Team
“It's been a pleasure working with you and all the professionals and just wanted to say
big thank you for all the support you've given to me and X.”
Compliment for Child Protection & Court Team
“I honestly can't praise Youth Services in Rochdale enough. Specifically, the two
support workers who run Milnrow Youth Club have been beyond fantastic right
through the pandemic and I feel they have been a lifeline for many families who have
children and young people with additional need.
From lockdown in March 2020, when everybody was isolated, they kept in touch and
were doing regular welfare phone calls, then calls to the front door, later doing visits
to the garden and when they couldn't come in the garden, they were dropping off
activities for us. I feel they were one of the first services to recognise the emotional
impact of the pandemic on young people with additional needs and very early on
began opening up services, initially taking X and his friend for walks and then opening
the youth club just for two to three young people initially. I feel this went above and
beyond in putting themselves out there and potentially at risk themselves to support
the welfare of young people. I am more than happy for you to use my comments
within your feedback too - they really do deserve praise.
Compliment for Youth Service

Page
10 18

Appendix 1
“I am writing this letter to inform you how wonderful and outstanding the Social
Worker has been while working on our case as a whole we are very grateful and
happy for her time and support she has given us. She has supported us throughout
this pandemic while dealing with our case and as a family we personally would like to
say a massive thank you for guiding us in the right direction and for pushing us to be
a better family and for also helping us with our children. I wouldn’t ask for anyone
else and also our children think highly of the Social Worker and they look forward to
her visits. So on that note thank you to all of you involved.”
Compliment for Cared for Children
“We’ve met a lot of social workers/adoption workers over the last 3 and half years and
in our opinion your one of the best. Kind, compassionate and made us feel listened to,
which as a foster carer that rarely happens, so thank you!”
Compliment for Family Time Facilitator

Page
11 19

Appendix 2

Page 20
1

Appendix 2

Page 21
2

Appendix 2

Page 22
3

Appendix 2

Page 23
4

Appendix 2

Page 24
5

Appendix 2

Page 25
6

Agenda Item 7
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

9th September 2021
Cabinet Member for
Getting A Good Start,
Cabinet Member for
Healthy Lives, Cabinet
Member for Social Care
and Ageing Well
Ben Jorgensen

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2021-22:
Quarter 1 Performance Update
Executive Summary
1.

To report progress at the end of Quarter 1 (1st April – 30th June) towards
achievement of the targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate Plan
2021-22, Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22 and Public Health
Directorate Plan 2021-22.
Recommendation

2.

Members are asked to review the information contained within the report
and the appendices.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework,
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each
quarter.

3.1

The Quarter 1 progress reports for the Adult Care Directorate, Children’s
Services and Public Health Directorate are attached at Appendix 1, 2 and 3
respectively. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in
accordance with the following criteria:

3.2

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control
Green: Action completed by the target date
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

Page 26

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red,
amber or purple.
Key Points for Consideration
4.

Adult Care Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress
Performance Overview

4.1

75% (9) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are ongoing.
25% (3) actions are now complete. The chart below shows the overall
performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of
Quarter 1.

Quarter 1 Summary
4.2

As part of the action to support the delivery of integrated neighbourhood
working a project board has now been established to implement a
programme of activity regarding the integrated neighbourhood team and
neighbourhood working in general. Progress is being made to clarify/confirm
accommodation for two Integrated Neighbourhood teams by end of financial
year.

4.3

A plan has been developed to modernise community mental health services.
The Mental health mandate provides a high level plan and includes specific
sections on crisis development, dementia and community mental health
transformation. Project plans are now in development with progress being
made in terms of living well model, recruitment to the CMHT and recruitment
to the crisis model. The R&R team has been established and development
is linked to the prevention review.

Page 27

4.4

Initial consultation and workshop has been completed as part of the work
towards delivering a new approach to the joint management (health and
social care) of people with complex issues around autism and Learning
difficulties. Next steps include consultations with LD partnership with work
plan to be agreed by the 30th September. There have been some delays
due to Covid-19.

4.5

As part of the action to standardise and automate our contract management
functions it was agreed to strengthen our approach to tactical
commissioning and build on the outcome of the 2021 pilot programme. The
pilot has now been completed with the outcome being implemented.
Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress
Performance Overview

4.6

88% (14) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are
ongoing. One action is not fully complete and the action due date has now
passed; a further action has now been completed. The chart below shows
the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the
end of Quarter 1.

4.7

The action that isn’t fully complete and the due date has passed (Amber)
relates to:
 Review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to ensure
effective transitions and support with EHASH, locality partners and
Children’s Social Care
Quarter 1 Summary

4.8

The EHASH Strategic Board has now been formed and membership
agreed. The board meets monthly with a continued focus upon demand and

Page 28

quality of practice in EHASH to ensure we meet the needs of our Children
and Families collectively.
4.9

Children's Champion Elections have been held in June as part of the action
to ensure the voice of young people is promoted and listened to across
service development and within provision; 7651 children took part in the
event. In order to facilitate youth provision in line with RBC Relationship
Champion initiative the Student Relationship Champion Programme was
launched in May 2021.

4.10 Weekly joint detached sessions established with Early Break in Rochdale
and Middleton have been launched in order to engage and support young
people at risk of serious youth violence. Links have been developed with
detached youth workers and the following schools: Falinge Park High
School, Matthew Moss, and Oulder Hill.
4.11 As part of the priority to continue to provide development opportunities for
employees from black, asian and minority ethnic communities, a range of
developmental opportunities have been developed internally and have been
offered to colleagues across the directorate; these have included a wellattended practice fortnight sessions with over 1200 attendees. First line
management supervision training has been offered and we have been
actively ensuring that these are accessible to black, asian and ethnic
communities. In addition when considering nominations for council wide
leadership development programmes and regionally and nationally delivered
programmes we have actively considered colleagues from black, Asian and
ethnic communities. Given widespread disadvantage we do not anticipate
being in the position that this is 100% complete as we will need to
continuously challenge ourselves on this area and monitor progress.
4.12 Implementation remains ongoing as part of the sub-action to fully implement
and embed No Wrong Door to safely support children edging towards care
to live successfully in the community. Staffing vacancies including specialist
workers have meant the offer is not as full as required but some young
people are being supported intensively to remain in the community.
4.13 In order to develop our Adolescent Safeguarding Offer, incorporating the
use of the ACT model to support young people in need of help and
protection, an ACT worker has now been appointed into the PRU on a 12
month contract. The purpose of this role is to provide support and advice to
the school team on different ways of working with children and young people
implementing aspects of the ACT model. Further discussions are underway
to consider the role of ACT within Cared for Children. My Safety Plan is now
becoming more embedded as a means of recognising when the risk to
young people is escalated by external factors especially where CCE/ CSE
may be prevalent.
Public Health & Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress
Performance Overview

Page 29

4.14 80% (12) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are
ongoing. 20% (3) actions are not fully complete and the action due date has
now passed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 1.

4.15 The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due date has passed (Amber)
relate to:
 Review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to ensure
effective transitions and support with EHASH, locality partners and
Children’s Social Care Work collaboratively to understand and
prepare for Public Health in the context of the Integration and
Innovation, and Public Health Proposals expected in due course
 Provide oversight and delivery where required, of COVID testing
programme across the borough
 Deliver enhanced contact tracing model
Quarter 1 Summary
4.16 As part of the action to lead on the development and implementation of a
system wide all-age prevention strategy it was agreed to co-design the
vision, narrative and goals with key stakeholders across the system
recognising the impact and learning of COVID-19 on our prevention
priorities. The co-design has now taken place with a draft strategy being
produced. Sign off has been arranged for September.
4.17 A programme for our most vulnerable to address deconditioning and mental
wellbeing has now been designed and agreed with funding to be allocated.
The programme plan which is aligned to the roadmap out of lockdown is set
to be launched with 7 programmes initiated.
4.18 To provide assurance on the effective implementation of the Covid-19
Vaccination Programme and reduce any health inequalities

Page 30

To ensure good programme management of the vaccination programme
there has been ongoing work focused on inequalities around vaccines with
planning developed for a booster programme. Regular reports are provided
to the Vaccine Assurance Group, Health Protection Board and Gold Control
as needed. All Cohort 1-9 have been invited for first doses as have Cohort
10. The Health Inequalities plan was last updated on 30 July 21 with input
from the group members. The group meets fortnightly. All leads for target
groups have been identified and regularly contacted for vaccination uptake
updates.
4.19 A local enhanced contact tracing model has been implemented that delivers
Tier 1 and Tier 2 contact tracing service. The launch of new interactive
contact tracing service has been postponed until September. The new
service is an essential aspect of the enhanced model and the delay has
pushed forward the implementation of some key elements within our
service.
Alternatives Considered
4.20 Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary
5.

None
Risk and Policy Implications

6.

None

Consultation
7.

Not required
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

Page 31

8.

Appendix 1 - Adult Care
Directorate Plan 2021-22 Q1

Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale OL16 1XU

Appendix 2 – Children’s
Services Directorate Plan 202122 Q1
Appendix 3 – Public Health
Directorate Plan 2021-22 Q1

For Further Information Contact:

Ben Jorgensen, ,
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 32

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

AC2101 Support the delivery of integrated neighbourhood working

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

AC2101.A

To further develop a partnership approach and work to a set of guiding principles which evidence
good neighbourhood working (complete actions in Project plan LCO exec group project sponsors)

Status

% Complete

24%

% Complete



20%

31 March 2022



35%

31 March 2022



20%

31 March 2022

A project board has been established to implement a programme of activity regarding the INT and neighbourhood working.
AC2101.B

To have four co -located Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INT) /Neighbourhood teams

Progress being made to clarify/confirm accommodation for the two teams by end of financial year

Page 33

AC2101.C

To initialise formal links with Primary Care Networks and housing

Initial contact has been made and some initial moves to clarify options for effective linkage with primary care networks, the expectation for housing to have identifying
links by March 22
AC2101.D

With Pennine Care to implement a neighbourhood offer around MH service provision (found in
Neighbourhood LCO project)

31 March 2022



20%

Mental health mandate covers community mental health transformation. Reports into the mental health partnership board, ultimately governed by the LCO. GM
collaborative and a design group which all supports the outcome.
AC2101.E

Engage in at least 1 public consultation exercise around aspects of neighbourhood working in each
neighbourhood (contained in team plans)

31 March 2022



25%

All teams as part of their team plan have engagement in the public consultation exercise as expected all will be taking place within financial year

AC2102 Undertake (with other directorates) test of change for new prevention model for vulnerable
adults

31 March 2022



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 7

20%

% Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 June 2021



60%

30 September 2021



0%

31 March 2022



0%

AC2103 Publish and enact new Scheme of Delegation, in line with the corporate constitution, financial
regulations and standing orders

31 March 2022



10%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2103.A

Review and embed within all service protocols, guidance and procedures

31 March 2022



AC2101.A

Start test of change – new model tested

% Complete

This has begun and the programme of work complete has been enacted
AC2101.B

Review test of change

Review due to take place September 21
AC2101.C

Implement new model

The implementation not due until March 22

Page 34

% Complete
10%

We Currently have an interim scheme of delegation in place, and are awaiting further communication from Michael Garraway (Committee and Constitutional Services)
regarding how we take this forward post-election and review of the constitution.

AC2104 Community Mental Health national framework to be implemented In conjunction with
commissioning (monitored via Mental Health partnership board and LCO mandate

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2104.A

Develop a plan to modernise community mental health services

30 April 2021



46%

% Complete
100%

Mental health mandate provides a high level plan and includes specific sections on crisis development, dementia and community mental health transformation
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 7

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

AC2104.B

Develop the project plan

Due Date

Status

31 October 2021



% Complete

40%

Progress is being made in terms of living well model, recruitment to the CMHT and recruitment to the crisis model. R&R team established and development is linked to
the prevention review.
31 March 2022



0%

AC2105 Dementia action plan to comply with GM dementia standards

31 Mach 2022



53%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2105.A

Baseline audit

30 April 2021



100%

30 September 2021



60%

28 February 2022



0%

AC2106 Prepare the locality and all partners for the implementation of Protection of Liberty
safeguards and review against preparedness

31 March 2022



8%

Ref.

Due

Status

AC2104.C

Review against framework

To be undertaken in Q3

Page 35

% Complete

Ongoing piece of work linked to dementia united

AC2105.B

Review against standards

GM standards are being refreshed, Rochdale are aligning the action plan to the new priorities
AC2105.C

Review against framework

To be actioned in Q3

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 7

% Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

AC2106.A

Audit of stakeholder preparedness

Due Date

Status

30 April 2021



% Complete

0%

This is on hold until the Code of Practice is published. When the Liberty Protection safeguard is fully in practice, the responsibilities can then be looked at.
AC2106.B

Implementation plan

30 June 2021



25%

Once the code of practice has been published, we will have 12 months to implement changes following the requirements from the department of health and social care.
Action plan in place, LPS implementation group will start to meet once the code of practice is published.
31 January 2022



0%

AC2107 To work towards a new approach to the joint management (health and social care) of people
with complex issues around autism and Learning difficulties

30 September 2021



12%

Ref.

Due

Status

30 September 2021



AC2106.C

Audit and report

Plan to be actioned in Q4

Page 36

AC2107.A

Name
In conjunction with commissioners and Pennine care Foundation Trust build on work in 2020 to
deliver a new assessment, treatment & intervention model for this specific group of people

% Complete
12%

Initial consultation and workshop completed. Next steps, consultations with LD partnership and work plan to be agreed by the 30th September. Experiencing delays due
to Covid.

AC2108 Using intelligence from the market position statement, accommodation panel create and
publish clear commissioning intentions for ASC accommodation requirements 2021-2024

31 May 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2108.A

Finalise neighbourhood data modelling for the care market to include RAG ratings linked to an
assessment of risk, based on quality; strategic importance of the setting and sufficiency needs.

30 April 2021



Completed
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 7

100%

% Complete
100%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Due Date

Status

Define and agree accommodation commissioning intentions aligned to ASC MPS and corporate plan

31 May 2021



100%

Mobilise new developments pathway and panel (including those to be commissioned)

31 May 2021



100%

AC2109 Develop, in partnership, a quality standard for non CQC registered accommodation with
support.

31 May 2021



100%

Page 37

Action Plan

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2109.A

Research quality standard across England, and consultation with key providers.

30 April 2021



100%

AC2109.B

Draft quality standard and business case for implementation

31 May 2021



100%

AC2110 Work collaboratively to understand and prepare for the introduction of a CQC assurance
framework for LA’s against Adult care duties and delivery of ASC in the context of the integration and
innovation white paper.

31 March 2021



66%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2110.A

Participate in the Client Level Data set(CLD) pilot and inform the national developments of the
national dashboard and assurance framework

31 March 2022



AC2108.B

% Complete

Completed
AC2108.C
Completed

% Complete

Completed

Completed

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 7

% Complete
100%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

31 March 2022



100%

31 March 2022



65%



35%

Complete as we have agreed participation with Claire Richardson
AC2110.B

Work with the care market to ensure ongoing capacity to meet national data submission
requirements including for self-funders

Providers currently updating as required nationally, future changes likely in Q3 and Q4
AC2110.C

Lead the coordination and submission of the client level dataset pilot including reporting, data
quality and information governance requirements to enable monthly submission of NHSD

Engaging the dataset, we are fully signed up as a pilot area and we are prepared. Just waiting for the DOH to engage us in starting.
AC2110.D

Review of workforce capacity against standards and care act duties for both operations and
commissioning

30 June 2021

Page 38

Work underway to collate demand and capacity for workforce. Commissioning is underway- report due sept 21, compulsory vaccinations will have a negative impact on
this workforce.
Develop a ASC medium term financial strategy

AC2110.F

Have due regard to the legislative framework for ICS’ and secure closer integration of health and
care via a MOU.

30 September 2021



50%

30 June 2021



50%

AC2111 To define our commissioning intentions to deliver improved housing with support options for
both older and younger adults

31 March 2021



90%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2111.A

Review, personalise and improve our supported living offer: Improvement plan to reflect
aspirations, opportunities and resources

30 June 2021



AC2110.E

Work in progress to complete by September 2021

Service specification and MOU completed. Legislation for the health integration currently going through parliament.

Review is progressing and will look to be completed by the end of Q2

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 7

% Complete
70%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Set out our Covid recovery strategy to meet the needs of older people requiring 24/7 care: Refresh
our 2020 market position statement

31 July 2021



100%

Refresh our ‘Living Well’ strategy promoting an asset based approach to community living: Refresh
our 2020 market position statement

31 July 2021



100%

AC2112 Standardise and automate our contract management functions

31 May 2021



100%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2112.A

Strengthen our approach to tactical commissioning: Build on the outcome of the 2021 pilot
programme

31 May 2021



AC2111.B

% Complete

Completed
AC2111.C

Pilot completed we are now implementing the outcome

Page 39

Pilot completed we are now implementing the outcome

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 7

% Complete
100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

CS2101 Children and young people in our Borough will aspire and achieve a better life through access
to opportunities, learning and training

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2101.A

Develop and Implement with schools the School Improvement Recovery Strategy, building on the
Interim School Improvement Strategy

30 September 2021



40%

30 September 2021



50%

30%

% Complete

Consultation initiated with the primary sector to determine the arrangements for School Improvement 2021 - 2022
CS2101.B

Work closely with the system to develop the overarching Schools Strategy and vision, with related
behaviours to strengthen: The school led system and school to school support as well as school
collaboration

Page 40

Raising Rochdale, articulation of vision, values and behaviours underway with the Pioneer's Trust. Initial session has taken place with the steering group of Rochdale
Association of Primary Head teachers
CS2101.C

Extend and embed the Rochdale Communication and Language project through Training and
development and support and challenge through the Early Years Foundation Stage and key stages
1 and 2.

31 March 2022



40%

Training and development has continued over the summer term to extend the Communication and Language project. The final cohort of schools will begin training in the
Autumn term. Based upon internal intelligence, we will prioritise schools for additional support for the school year 2021-2022
CS2101.D

Development and implementation of a primary and key stage 3 Reading strategy

31 March 2022



20%

31 March 2022



20%

31 March 2022



20%

Project plan has been completed to inform the development of the primary and key stage 3 Reading strategy
CS2101.E

Ensure that all secondary schools have an effective curriculum within key stage 3 and improve the
weak areas of the English baccalaureate to ensure students are better placed for key stage 4.

The Pioneer's Trust have now completed a Curriculum Development plan to inform the development of this work
CS2101.F

Implement the recommendations of the Inclusion review in order to reduce exclusions

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

A draft project plan has been developed to inform the actions within the six work streams. This will be presented to the Inclusion Board on 9th July 2021

CS2101.G

Strengthen the support and challenge to schools, education and training providers to improve the
percentages of young people who are in employment, education and training focussing
determinedly to improve outcomes for vulnerable young people.

31 March 2022



20%

Focus on Four focus group now established with key partner representation. In addition to this, additional capacity has been secured from Positive Steps as the
commissioned provider.

CS2102 Improve access to right service at right time

30 June 2021



Page 41

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2102.A

To work across the partnership to ensure that children in our borough receive the right service at
the earliest point of need through a partnership EHASH Strategic Management Group

30 June 2021



100%

% Complete
100%

The EHASH Strategic Board has now been formed and membership agreed. The board meets monthly with a continued focus upon demand and quality of practice in
EHASH to ensure we meet the needs of our Children and Families collectively.

CS2103 Develop and implement a refreshed whole family Early Help strategy that incorporates School
Readiness and aligns to the SEND Strategy and wider council prevention strategy

31 July 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2103.A

Review Early Help Systems Guide submission to identify priorities and Early Help governance at a
central and locality level

30 April 2021



The system guide has been completed and priorities will inform the Early Help strategy

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 12

91%

% Complete
100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2103.B

Scope and draft the new integrated strategy with relevant governance group (including Children
with Disabilities Partnership and the Prevention Board)

Due Date

Status

% Complete

30 June 2021



100%

01 July 2021



75%

30 June 2021



80%

Governance groups have been established with agreed TOR.
CS2103.C

Develop and implement a refreshed whole family Early Help strategy that incorporates School
Readiness and aligns to the SEND Strategy and wider council prevention strategy

We are currently in the process of writing the Early Help Strategy.

CS2104 Review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to ensure effective transitions and
support with EHASH, locality partners and Children’s Social Care

Page 42

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

% Complete

CS2104.A

Review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to ensure effective transitions and
support with EHASH, locality partners and Children’s Social Care

30 June 2021



100%

30 June 2021



60%

The locality team pathway has been developed and shared within the service guide
CS2104.B

Review information and advice services for multi-agency practitioners in relation to Early Help
and establish pathways with locality teams prior to EHASH

The Early Help panel will move to a locality footprint from Sept 21. This will allow multi agency practitioner to access support prior to EHASH. Locality team advisory
boards will start from Sept 21 which will be attend by managers from multi agency partners.

CS2105 Digitisation of Early Years communication and language assessments

31 December 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2105.A

Finalise digitisation of WellComm Assessment with GM

30 September 2021



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 12

53%

% Complete
75%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

This project is on track to be completed for September. Rochdale will be the first LA to use Wellcomm Assessment through the Early Education App which is linked to
Health Early Years App.
CS2105.B

Digitisation of Early Years communication and language assessments

30 September 2021



75%

IG agreement have been confirmed between health. Staff will be trained over the summer to use the App/assessment ready to be implemented in Sept
CS2105.C

Digitised assessment live and providing collated data

31 December 2021



10%

93%

Discussions have been had regarding the reporting element of the App. Once we go live this area of work will be developed

CS2106 Establish essential parent website to support information and advice to families

Page 43

28 February 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2106.A

Website established with GM and Rochdale priorities included

28 February 2022



% Complete
100%

We have been working closely with GM and the ecare team to ensure that Rochdale priorities are featured in the website. Staff will be able to send families information
related to Rochdale not just generic information.
CS2106.B

Staff trained and implementing e-care prescription element of Essential parent with families

28 February 2022



90%

The early year’s workers in Children's centres have completed their training to use the e-care prescription element of Essential Parenting. They started using the system
from 22.6.21. We are going to extend the training to the receptionist in children's centres and they will complete this by August 21
CS2106.C

Website embedded in local systems including Our Rochdale

28 February 2022



90%

The Essential Parenting website is embedded in Our Rochdale. We have delayed the publicity due to the essential Parent website currently not being live due to updates
they are making. Once this goes live we will continue with the publicity
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2107 Implementation and embedding of the SEND (Special Educational Needs/ Disabilities) reforms

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2107.A

Development of the integrated SEND Alliance Offer

31 March 2022



% Complete

48%

% Complete
20%

Joint Development work underway supported via CDC - Vision agreed - moving to mobilisation. Draft revised SEND meeting and governance structure out for
consultation.
CS2107.B

Development of a Joint SEND JSNA

30 September 2021



75%

Page 44

Data collection progress - Joint work is being supported by CDC. . Reviewed what data we have & jointly identified our gaps in data collection. Currently developing jointly
agreed 3/4 key focus data areas (obsession) which will to drive service development / offer forward.
CS2107.C

Collaboratively Development the Five year SEND Strategy

31 December 2021



50%



50%

Initial outline agreed - work on hold pending final development of the SEND JSNA and the embedding of the jointly agreed SEND Outcomes.
CS2107.D

Development of the Preparing for Adulthood / Transition Strategy

30 November 2021

Draft Transition Strat developed - developing it further to ensure it is relevant across all transition point not just SEND - New Transition group set up to consider the
integration with Adults - Preparing for Adulthood training packages now developed, training team agreed - final stage is to commence the training offer

CS2108 Provide sufficient and suitable school places for all children within the Borough

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 12

31 March 2022



33%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

% Complete

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2108.A

Continually review the availability of primary and secondary school places and negotiate delivery
of new school places with schools and/or DfE.

31 March 2022



25%

Reports to Cabinet for both Primary and Secondary sectors on 29th September 2020 providing updated position and required actions. These are currently subject to
review, discussion with DfE in conjunction with new school openings and will then be further shared with RAPH and Pioneers Trust in the Autumn term.
CS2108.B

Support the DfE delivery of two planned secondary Free Schools and one Free Special School
(ASC) which are required for the Borough.

31 March 2022



50%

Page 45

Middleton - Edgar Wood Academy opening confirmed by DfE and places allocated at temporary Hopwood Hall College site for September 2021. Construction beginning at
Bowlee site with completion planned for September 2022. Pennines - Star Academy Trust appointed. Trust plan to self-deliver with assistance/approval from DfE. Surveys
completed on site and pre-application Planning meetings undertaken. Indications from DfE that September 2022 delivery is not possible it will now be 2023/24. LA is
working with DfE to establish a contingency plan for the intervening period. SEN (ASC) School - New Bridge Academy specific brief negotiated between Trust and DfE.
Heads of Terms and lease agreement drafted. DfE advise that opening date will be delayed and are anticipating 2023/34. LA will work with DfE to establish contingency
for intervening period.
CS2108.C

Deliver school expansions, refurbishments and capital maintenance and repair projects across the
school estate

31 March 2022



0%

2021/22 schools capital programme of £3.5m approved by Cabinet in March 2021. Schemes at various stages of design and tendering process with the majority due for
completion by the end of August 2021. New school building for Littleborough CPS to be delivered by DfE and work will start on site in August 2021 with a view to be ready
for occupation by September 2022.

CS2109 Ensure that young people have access to quality evening provision to meet identified needs

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2109.A

Integration of Youth Programme Quality Intervention (YPQI) as quality and improvement
indicator to enhance offer for young people

31 March 2022



Involvement in pilot project ongoing with Centre for Youth Impact. Next round of inspections planned for Q3.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 12

0%

% Complete
0%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2110 Ensure the voice of young people is promoted and listened to across service development and
within provision

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2110.A

Enhance the offer of Member of Youth Parliament / Children’s Champion / Cared for
Ambassadors and increase the numbers of young people participating in voice projects

31 March 2022



% Complete

41%

% Complete
33%

Children's Champion Elections held June 2021. 7651 children took part in the event. Member of youth Parliament elections and cared for Ambassadors due in Q3/Q4
Facilitate the Student Relationship Champions programme with schools and youth provision in
line with RBC Relationship Champion initiative.

31 March 2022



50%

CS2111 Engage and support young people at risk of serious youth violence

31 March 2022



50%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2111.A

Develop strong links between detached youth work and other areas where young people are
identified at risk of SYV

31 March 2022



Page 46

CS2110.B

Student relationship Champion Programme launched May 2021

% Complete
50%

Weekly joint detached sessions established with Early Break in Rochdale and Middleton. Project ended July 2021 due to Early Break funding. Hope to re-establish later in
the year. Links developed with detached youth workers and the following schools: Falinge Park High School, Matthew Moss, and Oulder Hill.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2112 Workforce stability is maintained and strengthened

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2112.A

Continue to provide development opportunities for employees from black, Asian and minority
ethnic communities.

31 March 2022



% Complete

75%

% Complete
75%

A range of developmental opportunities have been developed internally and have been offered to colleagues across the directorate, these have included a well-attended
practice fortnight sessions with over 1200 attendees. First line management supervision training has been offered and we have been actively ensuring that these are
accessible to black, Asian and ethnic communities. in addition when considering nominations for council wide leadership development programmes and regionally and
nationally delivered programmes we have actively considered colleagues from black, Asian and ethnic communities. Given widespread disadvantage we do not anticipate
being in the position that this is 100% complete as we will need to continuously challenge ourselves on this area and monitor progress.

Page 47

CS2112.B

Embed and further develop mechanisms to ensure that staff at every level in the organisation
influence strategy and practice standards.

31 March 2022



75%

We have renewed our management meeting arrangement to ensure that all front line managers have the opportunity to meet with heads of service and Assistant
Director on a regular basis. This is assisting with improving our communication through the service.

CS2113 Ensure that children who are experiencing neglect in our borough are identified and receive
timely services to improve their lives

30 September 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2113.A

Review our approach to Neglect through the Safeguarding Partnership

31 March 2022



50%

% Complete
50%

Neglect questionnaire has been completed and findings have been considered. Focus groups are taking place involving practitioners from all partnership services to
participate and develop the new tool to address Neglect issues.
CS2113.B

Develop and implement a service wide engagement strategy for young people, parents and carers

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 12

30 September 2021



50%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

The Participation strategy has been revisited and will be relaunched in July 2021. Participation focus groups are taking place with young people to contribute to
developments around Child Protection case conferences and C4C reviews.

CS2114 Safely stabilise the number of children in need of protection and children cared for, ensuring
children receive services through embedding innovative approaches

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2114.A

Continue to embed the locality based social work offer alongside the development of the early
help offer

31 December 2021



59%

% Complete
75%

Page 48

Embedding the offer is ongoing, monthly locality meetings between PM and Locality leads are now in place and by September all PMs will have a link to a high school. SW
now chair the first TAF at step down and for 3 months following children closing to FRT professionals can access support and advice if required.
CS2114.B

Fully implement and embed No Wrong Door to safely support children edging towards care to live
successfully in the community.

31 March 2022



60%

Implementation remains ongoing. Staffing vacancies including specialist workers have meant the offer is not as full as required but some young people are being
supported intensively to remain in the community
CS2114.C

Develop our Adolescent Safeguarding Offer incorporating the use of the ACT model to support
young people in need of help and protection

31 March 2022



50%

The ACT worker has now been appointed into the Pru on a 12 month contract, the purpose of this role is to provide support and advice to the school team on different
ways of working with children and young people implementing aspect of the ACT model - further discussions are underway to consider the role of ACT within Cared for
Children. My Safety Plan is now becoming more embedded as a means of recognising when the risk to young people is escalated by external factors especially where CCE/
CSE may be prevalent
CS2114.D

Complete a 2021-23 strategic youth justice partnership plan that will continue to develop a local
end to end youth justice system underpinned by child first, offender second principles &
approaches

30 September 2021

This has been completed and has been shared at YJ Partnership board, final draft has been sent to DCS for final sign off.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 9 Of 12



100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2114.E

Review the use of pre-proceedings to safely reduce the number of children requiring care
applications through the family courts

Due Date

Status

31 December 2021



% Complete

10%

Review of PP process and templates is underway. CFLG have provided some suggested PP templates and have some proposed some areas where we could strengthen our
PP work including HoS oversight of the same. We are also looking at the TOR for Gateway meetings. This work is informed by the recent President's report on care
proceedings and PP. Next meeting between CP/Court, FRT and CFLG to progress this set for 14th July. The other piece of work on this is with VR regarding the data we get
from CFLG on PP outcomes and timeliness and how we can make better use of this. We aim to progress this, also, in July.

CS2115 Secure permanence for more children, ensuring there are sufficient local placements and
choice where children need to be cared for / adopted

31 March 2022



Page 49

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2115.A

Embed our Sufficiency strategy to ensure that more children in our care live in high quality local
placements

31 March 2022



55%

% Complete
80%

Children in IHF placements have remained at an increased level of over 290. Increased numbers supported through family and friends arrangements. Reduced reliance on
external residential placements with projections for this to decrease further by the end of Q2

CS2115.B

Embed and deliver innovative approaches via Project fostering to continue restore in-house
fostering services to a position of growth. In particular implement: -Mocking Bird -PACE practice
model -Secure Base -Supported lodgings provision

31 March 2022



90%

First Mockingbird Constellation live at start of May. All supervisory social workers fully trained in SecureBase and training of foster carers has commenced. All paperwork
and forms reviewed to ensure this reflects the model in a way that further embeds the model
All SSW's have now undertaken DDP training to underpin PACE roll out
CS2115.C

Embed our revised Permanence Strategy

31 October 2021

Our approach to permanence is being reviewed to ensure that every child benefits from a loving and secure home through to adulthood.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 10 Of 12



25%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2115.D

Review our support arrangements for children subject to Special Guardianship Arrangements,
Child Arrangement Orders, Adoption Orders and other permanence arrangements

Due Date

Status

% Complete

31 October 2021



25%

38%

SGO pathway has been finalised; SGO policy is being reviewed with AD; SGO support offer is being reviewed and revised

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

Implement a Contextual Safeguarding approach to understand and respond to young people’s
experiences of significant harm beyond their families.

31 March 2022



Page 50

CS2116 Children’s Services lead proactive relational practice within partnership arrangements

CS2116.A

% Complete
50%

This is ongoing, an area in Heywood has been identified and all agencies have now developed an action plan. This meeting now needs to reconvene to pull together the
action plan and implement
CS2116.B

Develop a Strengths based approach to child protection conferences

31 March 2022



50%

31 December 2021



25%

31 December 2021



30%

Full programme plan now developed and has commenced with a go live date of the 01.10.21
CS2116.C

Develop pathway for 16/17 year olds presenting as homelessness and in need of accommodation

Link in between Commissioning, CSC and housing via strategic housing group and Transitions Gap Group
CS2116.D

Develop accommodation options for young people presenting as homeless

Work has commenced as part of the strategic Housing group. Our Place flats - 1 on stream and in place 1 more should be online and available in the next few weeks.
See above re supported lodgings

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 11 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Page 51
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 12 Of 12

Status

% Complete

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

PH2101 Refresh Locality Plan to reflect impact of COVID and emerging new priorities

30 September 2021




Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2101.A

Establish governance arrangements for development and ownership of the plan, within the
shadow arrangements of new locality construct.

30 April 2021



100%

30 September 2021



25%

PH2102 Develop Intelligence Network to support strategic and tactical intelligence requirements
within new system architecture

31 December 2021



5%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2102.A

Describe structure, purpose and function of the intelligence network, signed off by partners
across the system.

30 June 2021



20%



0%

62%

% Complete

Will be owned by system board.

PH2101.B

Lead on collaborative development of refreshed Locality Plan

Page 52

The intention is to progress sign off through the system board during Sept.

% Complete

We have now hired a senior intelligence lead who will be in post by September. This was critical to progress. Details still need to be developed.

PH2102.B

Bring together network, agree ways of working and develop work plan aligned with priorities.

Work ongoing.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 12

30 September 2021

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 September 2021



0%

31 December 2021



0%

PH2103 Work collaboratively to understand and prepare for Public Health in the context of the
Integration and Innovation, and Public Health Proposals expected in due course

30 June 2021



25%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2103.A

Have due regard to the local changes to system architecture, and define where and how the
service needs to connect to the wider system to influence local policy and decision making

30 June 2021



25%

30 June 2021



25%



60%

PH2102.C

Begin working against work plan, completing at least one piece of joint working.

% Complete

Work ongoing.
PH2102.D

Reflect on processes, refine approaches, and share learning.

Work ongoing.

Page 53

% Complete

Currently in development and contributing into wider recovery planning.

PH2103.B

Review and update MOU with LCO, ensuring collaborative leadership at locality level with a key
focus on improving population health

Ways of working and relationships between the local care organisation and the integrated commissioning board continue to be developed.

PH2104 Lead on the development and implementation of a system wide all-age prevention strategy

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 12

31 March 2022

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

% Complete

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2104.A

Co-design the vision, narrative and goals with key stakeholders across the system recognising the
impact and leaning of COVID-19 on our prevention priorities. Secure strategy sign-off.

30 September 2021



50%

31 March 2022



80%

30 April 2021



100%

31 March 2022



25%

Co-design taken place and draft strategy produced. Sign-off arranged for September

PH2104.B

Prevention and Neighbourhood Project Board to oversee Implementation across the system

In the final stages of development and will be shared in coming weeks.
Prevention and Neighbourhood Board meeting monthly and overseeing strategy and work stream progress

Page 54

PH2104.C

Undertake a Rapid Health Needs Assessment (specifically focused on mental wellbeing, physical
activity, tobacco, obesity, healthy eating, drugs and alcohol, oral health) to inform the health
improvement commission

Lifestyle HNA complete. Recommendations informing the health improvement commission and prevention strategy

PH2104.D

Develop system wide procurement/development plans including the 2021/22 public health
improvement prevention commission

Plan in place for specialist health improvement service re-procurement. Specification in development, aiming for Q2 commencement of procurement.

PH2104.E

Develop revised service specification

30 June 2021



75%

Procure agreed service specification and award contract

31 October 2021



0%

In progress

PH2104.F

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

30 September 2021



50%

31 March 2022



100%

PH2105 LCO Population Health Management Projects

31 March 2022



25%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2105.A

Identify and deliver programmes of work using population health management to tackle three
priority health areas - Develop work plan, informed by intelligence and in conjunction with LCO
partners, identifying priority health needs

30 April 2021



25%

31 March 2022



25%

Not yet commenced

PH2104.G

Design and implement an agreed and integrated model of social prescribing / good help network

Model developed and phase 1 roll out underway

PH2104.H

Assess progress, achievements and update strategy implementation plan

A draft strategy has been developed based on progress made in 20/21

Page 55

% Complete

Joint working with LCO- Work has commenced looking at cancer screening and early diagnosis.

PH2105.B

Identify and deliver programmes of work using population health management to tackle three
priority health areas - Deliver against agreed priorities, incorporating components of a population
health management approach.

Development sessions held on health inequalities with further development sessions planned with population health system partners in autumn.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

PH2106 Wider Determinants As we move from the pandemic response, we need to address the impact
on the wider determinants of health.

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2106.A

Develop work plan, informed by intelligence and in conjunction with Local Authority partners, and
the Economic Support Network, to identify priority areas of work

31 May 2021



100%

31 March 2022



25%

PH2107 Deliver neighbourhood focussed programme of work, focussing on addressing an element
within wider determinants of health. Linked to broader LCO neighbourhoods ‘Test of Concept’
programme of work.

31 March 2022



8%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2107.A

Decide on priority focus, informed by Rapid Health Needs Assessment, and identify key partners
to form project group. Describe project plan and key milestones.

30 June 2021



25%

30 September 2021



0%

62%

% Complete

Priority lead and areas identified

Page 56

PH2106.B

Deliver against agreed priorities, incorporating programmes of work including Community Wealth
Building, Housing, Finance and Work and Skills.

Delivery programme is underway

% Complete

Neighbourhood focused programme of work being determined
PH2107.B

Begin delivery phase of project, incorporating ongoing monitoring and evaluation. Share learning
across other ‘Test of Concept’ programmes

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Due Date

Status

31 March 2022



0%

PH2108 ‘Re-entry not response’

31 March 2022



62%

Page 57

Action Plan

% Complete

Not yet commenced

PH2107.C

Complete evaluation of programme to inform wider roll-out of concept, focussing on additional
areas and priorities.

Not yet commenced

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

% Complete

PH2108.A

Develop a programme for our most vulnerable to address deconditioning and mental wellbeing.

01 May 2021



100%

31 March 2022



25%

31 March 2022



62%

Programme designed, agreed and funding allocated

PH2108.B

Deliver against programme plan, aligned to roadmap out of lockdown

Programme plan currently being launched and 7 programmes initiated

PH2109 Recommission the Sexual Health Service to ensure improved access to services and alignment
to GM vision

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

% Complete

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2109.A

Conduct soft market testing with providers to inform the market of the forthcoming opportunity
and to understand the market appetite for the service.

30 April 2021



100%

Develop service specification with developmental requirements clearly outlined; consider learning
30 April 2021
from Covid-19.



100%

Procure agreed service specification and award contract

30 November 2021



50%

31 March 2022



0%

PH2110 Finalise the partnership agreement between RBC and the Link4Life

31 October 2021



51%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2110.A

Review previous work completed in light of the L4L covid recovery plan and amend to reflect
developments in L4L operations.

30 June 2021



Complete

PH2109.B

Complete

PH2109.C

Page 58

ITT due to go live on 6th August 2021.

PH2109.D

New service to commence

Due to commence 1/4/2022

Review complete, update report submitted to Cabinet July 2021.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 12

% Complete
80%

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 September 2021



75%

31 October 2021



0%

PH2111 Ensure the allocation and use of additional funding received to support public health
outcomes is in line with legal and governance requirements

31 October 2021



68%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2111.A

Allocation of the Contain Outbreak Management Fund 2021/22 finalised and approved by Cabinet

30 June 2021



100%

Determine use of additional drug misuse and obesity funding allocation and put in place relevant
contract procedures if applicable.

30 June 2021



50%

PH2110.B

Finalise the Link4Life outcomes framework

% Complete

Outcomes framework is an appendix to the above cabinet report. Currently pending approval

PH2110.C

Finalise and sign off the partnership agreement as a legal document

Not yet commenced

Page 59

% Complete

Complete

PH2111.B

Additional obesity funding finalised and in place.
Criminal Justice drug and alcohol funding obtained. Recruitment currently underway.
Awaiting result of rough sleeper drug and alcohol treatment bid

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 June 2021



100%

31 October 2021



25%

PH2112 To provide assurance on the effective implementation of the Covid-19 Vaccination Programme
and reduce any health inequalities

31 March 2022



47%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2112.A

As SRO Ensure good programme management of the vaccination programme with regular reports
to Vaccine Assurance Group, Health Protection Board and Gold Control as needed

31 March 2022



30%

30 April 2021



100%

31 July 2021



100%

PH2111.C

Support Community Safety with the allocation of the ‘new burdens’ domestic abuse funding

% Complete

Spending plan in place for new burdens funding. Contract extensions for domestic abuse services approved in Q1 by ICB

PH2111.D

Ensure exit strategies are in place for all non-recurrent grant funding.

Ongoing management required for this.

Page 60

% Complete

Ongoing work focused on inequalities around vaccines and planning for booster programme.

PH2112.B

Cohort 1-9 invited for first doses

All cohorts have been invited for first doses

PH2112.C

Cohort 10 are invited for first dose

All cohorts have been invited for first doses.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 9 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2112.D

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (1st)

Due Date

Status

30 April 2021



% Complete

0%

The plan was last updated on 30 July 21 with input from the group members. The group meets fortnightly. All leads for target groups have been identified and regularly
contacted for vaccination uptake updates.

31 July 2021



0%

30 October 2021



0%

31 January 2021



0%

PH2113 Provide oversight and delivery where required, of COVID testing programme across the
borough

30 June 2021



50%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2113.A

Deliver phase 2 of Community Testing programme, continuously improving and adapting as
required (April to June).

30 June 2021



PH2112.E

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (2nd)

Not yet commenced.
PH2112.F

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (3rd)

Page 61

Not yet commenced.

PH2112.G

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (4th)

Not yet commenced.

% Complete
50%

Community testing is currently continuing until the end of September albeit operating hours have been reduced to ensure that costs are kept within the DHSC rate card.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 10 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2113.B

Develop plan for ongoing sustainable model of community testing for post June ’21, ensuring
emerging needs surrounding COVID continue to be met.

Due Date

Status

% Complete

30 June 2021



50%

90%

3 month plan July-Sept has been agreed and is in operation. We await further info from DHSC about testing post September.

PH2114 Deliver enhanced contact tracing model

30 June 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

Page 62

Develop detailed plan and ensure appropriate resource in place to deliver enhanced model of
contact tracing, focussing on priority groups, continuously improving and adapting as required

30 June 2021



PH2114.A

% Complete
90%

A local enhanced contact tracing model has been implemented that delivers Tier 1 and Tier 2 contact tracing service. The launch of new interactive contact tracing
service has been postponed until September. The new service is an essential aspect of the enhanced model and the delay has pushed forward the implementation of
some key elements within our service.

PH2115 Develop and implement enhanced isolation support offer

30 September 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2115.A

Develop enhanced isolation support offer for the borough, incorporating national and GM
programmes of work and ensuring they are sufficient and appropriate for our residents

30 April 2021



GM and national isolation support offer established with ongoing review and development against roadmap

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 11 Of 12

87%

% Complete
100%

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2115.B

Implement and monitor enhanced offer

Ongoing

Page 63
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 12 Of 12

Due Date

Status

30 September 2021



% Complete

75%

Agenda Item 8
Agenda
Item
Report to (Full Council)
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

13th October 2021
Healthy Lives
Claire Richardson
Public

Establishment of Shadow System Board
Executive Summary
1.0

This report aims to:
 Set the context for the establishment of the Shadow System
Board
 Describe the subsequent requirements for the current
governance arrangements, including the Strategic Place Board,
the Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body and the
Integrated Commissioning Board
 Set out a series of recommendations required to establish the
Shadow System Board from October 2021

1.1

In November 2020 “Integrating Care: Next steps to building strong and
effective integrated care systems across England” and subsequent White
Paper published in February 2021, set out proposals to:





1.2

1.3

Improve population health and healthcare
Tackle unequal outcomes and access
Enhance productivity and value for money
Help to support broader social and economic development

One of the key elements outlined was the “Principle of Subsidiarity” which
descried the requirement for more functions and resources to be devolved
from national and regional levels to local systems to ensure:
 decisions are taken closer to communities
 collaboration between partners in a place
 collaboration between providers
The White Paper therefore aligns to the Greater Manchester Devolution
agenda and our Rochdale Locality ambition for PLACE to have primacy and to

Page 64

continue to build on the existing integration across the health and care system,
through the further development of the Local Care Organisation (LCO).
1.4

In line with further guidance and working across Greater Manchester, the
North East Sector and our Rochdale system the Rochdale Locality Construct
has been developed with the following three key elements (See figure 1):






System Board: Responsible for setting the strategic direction for
the locality and the board this paper seeks to establish in
shadow form
Local Care Organisation Board: Already established bringing
together provider and commissioner partners from across health
and care, including the voluntary sector, to deliver services in the
best way to improve outcomes for the population.
Neighbourhoods: Integrating services around local people,
creating a system of multi-agency professionals from all public
services working together. Delivery will be person-centred and
take a proactive and preventative approach, intervening early
and responding to the person in the context of their community

Figure 1: Proposed Rochdale Locality Construct
Note: Overview and Scrutiny and Council Cabinet provided for illustrative proposes only

Primary Care
Commissioning
Committee

GM ICS/CCG

System Board
(incorporating
H&WBB)
Quality and Safety
Committee

Finance,
Performance and
Risk Group

People and Place
Partnership

Workforce Group

Local Care
Organisation Board
(LCO)

Engagement, Equality and Cohesion

Safeguarding
Childrens
Partnership
Safeguarding
Adults Board
Community Safety
Partnership

Council Cabinet

Clinical and Professional Leadership

Overview and
Scrutiny

It should be noted that four key subgroups will be established to support the
Shadow System Board to deliver its functions:
Neighbourhood
1





1.5

Neighbourhood
2

Neighbourhood
3

Neighbourhood
4

Neighbourhood
5

People and Place Partnership
Quality and Safety Committee
Finance, Performance and Risk Committee
Workforce
Communications

Information
Technology

Estates

Bridging Team

Strategic
Intelligence

Neighbourhood
6

Key
Strategic

Delivery

Enabler

The System Board will need to be formally in place by April 2022, with a
Shadow System Board established by October 2021. The Shadow System
Board and System Board will have an Independent Chair which will need to be
recruited to.

Page 65

A key part of our Locality Construct will be the appointment of a Place Lead for
Rochdale which will need to go through a formal process.

1.6

This report seeks to formalise the Shadow System Board for Rochdale
Borough with effect from October 2021; agreement to the terms of reference
for the Board; and appointments to the Shadow System Board.

Recommendation
2.1

To approve the establishment of a Shadow System Board including the draft
Terms of Reference and Locality Construct (as detailed in Figure 1 and
Appendix 1).

2.2

To approve appointments to the Shadow System Board (as detailed in
Appendix 2).

2.3

To retain existing arrangements for the Integrated Commissioning Board
until end March 2022.

2.4

To approve the commencement of the recruitment process for the
Independent Chair of the Shadow System Board (acknowledging the dual
role as Independent Chair for the ICB until end March 2022), delegating
authority to the Chief Executive / Accountable Officer to agree the Job
Description

2.5

To note that the Council will be requested to approve the disestablishment of
the Strategic Place Board (in so much the powers of the Health and
Wellbeing Board) and Integrated Commissioning Board from 31 March
2022; with a further report to Council following Royal consent of the White
Paper.

2.6

To note the significant work required regarding funding flows to System
Board prior to seeking delegations from Council Cabinet for 2022/23.
Reason for Recommendation

3.0

3.1

Following the publishing of the Integration and Innovation White Paper
earlier in the year there is a requirement to establish statutory integrated
health and care systems (ICS) which will require changes to the current
system.
The governance framework is framed under the Local Government Act
1972. As a statutory Joint Committee formed by the two statutory
organisations all members must comply with the requirements set by the
Local Government Acts 1972 and 2000 and the Council’s Constitution. The
Council is committed to maintaining the established good governance

Page 66

practices that have been established where legislation allows. The SPB and
ICB will end and the System Board will be formed as a new committee
based on the principles of the ICB in collaboration with GMICS.
3.2

The establishment of a Shadow System Board is the way in which the
Rochdale Locality is proposing to facilitate this requirement.

Key Points for Consideration
4.0

Key information / Considerations
White paper and Guidance

4.1

The White Paper and associated guidance sets out several key
considerations and timescales that have been taken into account in the
development of the locality construct and the GM ICS. These are set out
below:

4.2

Clinical Commissioning Groups will cease at the end of March 2022 and a
single GM ICS will be established from 1 April 2022 (subject to legislation),
although shadow arrangements may be in place as early as Q3 2021/22.

4.3

There is a requirement for the functions of Health and Wellbeing Boards to
continue but it does not specify how this must happen. In other words, the
functions of the Health and Wellbeing Board must remain but can be
enacted through alternative governance arrangements. The proposal for
Rochdale is that these functions are delivered through both the System
Board and the People and Place Partnership which is a sub group of the
System Board.

4.4

It is recognised that some CCG functions may sit at a Greater Manchester
level within the GM ICS. Rochdale system leaders are actively engaged in
working with GM and all other localities to define the functions that will be
held at GM level and those that will be retained locally, with a clearly stated
ambition to retain as much resource and expertise as possible in the locality.

4.5

The ICS will have two main bodies (Draft GM ICS Governance
arrangements are provided in Appendix 3):
 ICS Partnership: Each ICS will have a Partnership at system
level established by the NHS and local government as equal
partners. The Partnership will operate as a forum to bring
partners (local government, NHS and others) together across the
ICS area to align purpose and ambitions with plans to integrate
care and improve health and wellbeing outcomes for their
population.
 ICS NHS bodies: will be established as new organisations that
bind partner organisations together in a new way with common
purpose. They will lead integration within the NHS, bringing

Page 67

together all those involved in planning and providing NHS
services to take a collaborative approach to agreeing and
delivering ambitions for the health of their population.
Local Arrangements

4.6

Taking the above considerations into account the Rochdale system has
been developing its locality construct (figure 1 above) and proposes the
following:

4.7

Currently joint integrated commissioning decision making for Health and
Care is enacted through the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) which
was established by NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical
Commissioning Group (HMR CCG) and Rochdale Borough Council (RBC)
as a sub-committee of the Strategic Place Board, pursuant to the NHS
Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership Regulations 2000 as amended,
and derived its authority and decision making powers from the two
organisations.

4.8

It is proposed to have a System Board in place for the 1st April 2022 which
will replace the Strategic Place Board (Health and Wellbeing Board
elements) and the Integrated Commissioning Board as the body which will
be responsible for bringing together systems to support integration and
develop a plan to address the systems' health, public health, and social care
needs.

4.9

To support the development of the System Board it is proposed that a
Shadow System Board is established from October 2021. This will provide
the opportunity for the system to come together to jointly contribute to our
Health and Care decision making. Given that at the present time there isn’t
clarity around the delegations which will come to localities from the GM ICS
it is not possible to clearly outline the requirements for delegations to the
Shadow System Board. It is therefore proposed that the Integrated
Commissioning Board continues under the existing delegations that are
currently delegated to the SPB (Health and Wellbeing Board elements) and
ICB (as detailed in Appendix 4) until the end of March 2021. Therefore, the
Shadow System Board will have no formal decision making but, by virtue to
membership arrangements, will contribute to the decision making at ICB.

4.10 It should be noted that significant work will need to be completed across the
system once delegations from the GM ICS are more clearly understood
taking account of any subsequent guidance. The flow of funds across the
system and how the these will be brought together at System Board will
need to be fully understood prior to seeking delegations from Council for
2022/23.
4.11 The role of the Shadow System Board will be to:

Page 68














Set the strategic direction for the Borough, utilising Public Health
led data and intelligence to inform decision making and reduce
health inequalities.
Be accountable for the pooled budget and have shared oversight
of the Rochdale £ to ensure the most effective use of public
resources.
Hold the system to account for delivery of Health and Care
provision for the Borough to ensure delivery of agreed outcomes.
(Assurance mechanisms to be determined)
Operate as the strategic interface into the Greater Manchester
Integrated Care System (GMICS), regional and national systems.
Seek assurance on the delivery of system wide statutory duties
including, but not exclusive to, reducing health inequalities, quality
and safety of services, performance targets and financial
arrangements.
Develop strong links with the wider Public Sector Reform agenda
and operate under the GM Public Sector Reform Principles as
outlined below
Oversee the development of and transition to a new locality
System Board.

4.12 A single recruitment process will need to take place to establish an
Independent Chair for the Shadow System Board and the subsequent fully
established System Board. In addition to taking on the role for the Shadow
Board from October the new Independent Chair will have the dual role of
Independent Chair for the ICB from October 2021 until it is disestablished at
the end of March 2022. This will support consistency between the Shadow
System Board and ICB in this interim period.

Alternatives Considered
4.12 The White Paper indicates that the ICS will have to work closely with local
Health and Wellbeing Bodies as they have the experience as ‘place-based’
planners. That requires the ICS NHS Body to have regard to the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessments and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies
that are produced by the HWBB. However, it is not expected that HWBBs
will necessarily need to form the structure on which the ICS Health and Care
Partnership is based and is for local determination. Those functions which
relate to section 75 integrated funds and are currently delegated to the ICB
will be required to transfer.
4.13 The proposal is to incorporate the functions of the HWBB into the new
Locality Construct but could remain as a standalone function working in
conjunction with the ICS. However, given the development of the People
and Place Partnership sub group as detailed in the paper and the

Page 69

establishment of the System Board it is considered that these two
components of the locality construct adequately cover the functions of the
HWBB.
Costs and Budget Summary
5.

There are no financial implications as part of this report
Risk and Policy Implications

6.

In here, highlight any risks associated with the report. These could be
legislative; equality focused; personnel; asset management. Are there
risks associated with taking this course of action, or equally, if we don’t
take the course of action, what will the risks be?
Will there be any additional impact on Council policy? If so, what will they
be Could it affect another service area? If so, how (discuss this with
colleagues from other services, where appropriate and highlight any
implications/how they will be addressed.
Consultation

7.0

The White paper for Innovation and integration follows the previous green
paper ‘Integrating care: next steps to building strong and effective
integrated care systems’ which was out for public consultation between
December 202 and January 2021.

7.1

This paper outlines the local response the implications outlined in the
White Paper for ‘Innovation and integration’ and will be presented to the
following committees prior to final approval:







7.2

Leadership – 31st August 2021
Health and Schools Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 8th
September 2021
Strategic Place Board – 14th September 2021
Governing Body – 17th September 2021
Informal Cabinet – 30th September 2021
Council – 13th October 2021

An Equality impact initial screening has been completed. At this stage a full
EIA is not consider as a requirement. As further information is made
available via the GM ICS and national policy this will be reviewed to ensure
the delegations once received do not negatively impact on any protected
characteristics.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

Page 70

8.

Here you should detail any
background papers –

For Further Information Contact:

Integrated Commissioning Directorate N1Riverside
scroasdale@nhs.net
or
Claire.Richardson@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 71

Appendix 1: Shadow System Board Draft Terms of Reference

ROCHDALE LOCALITY SHADOW SYSTEM BOARD
DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE
“Improve the health, care and wellbeing outcomes for the borough of Rochdale”

1.1

These terms of reference refer to the SHADOW arrangements for the System
Board (without delegations) and will evolve through 2021-22 until the System
Board is fully constituted by April 2022. During this Shadow phase formal
decision making will continue to be enacted through the existing Integrated
Commissioning Board.

1.2

The Rochdale Locality System Board (“System Board”) is responsible for the
delivery of the outcomes set out in “Co-operating for better health and
wellbeing, Rochdale Borough Locality Plan 2020-2024” (“Locality Plan”). This
plan sets out “how we will do all we can so that residents in our borough live
long and happy lives that are as healthy as possible, for as long as possible.”
The plan further states, “If we achieve this, it will mean that we will have
‘Improved the health, care and wellbeing outcomes for the borough of
Rochdale’.”

1.3

The Locality Plan sets out a series of principles by which we will operate to
deliver improved outcomes:

Page 72

2

Purpose

2.1

The System Board is established by partner organisations who are committed
to working together to ensure that Rochdale residents have improved heath,
wellbeing and prosperity.

2.2

This is further defined by the following Health and Wellbeing Outcomes as
stated in the Locality Plan:
 People: get a good start, are protected, are resilient, are healthy and fulfil
their potential
 Place is: age friendly, inclusive, welcoming, provides opportunities and
supports sustainable growth.

3

Responsibilities:

3.1

Set the strategic direction for the Borough, utilising Public Health led data and
intelligence to inform decision making and reduce health inequalities.

3.2

Be accountable for the pooled budget and have shared oversight of the
Rochdale £ to ensure the most effective use of public resources.

Page 73

3.3

Hold the system to account for delivery of Health and Care provision for the
Borough to ensure delivery of agreed outcomes. (Assurance mechanisms to be
determined)

3.4

Operate as the strategic interface into the Greater Manchester Integrated Care
System (GMICS), regional and national systems.

3.5

Seek assurance on the delivery of system wide statutory duties including, but
not exclusive to, reducing health inequalities, quality and safety of services,
performance targets and financial arrangements.

3.6

Develop strong links with the wider Public Sector Reform agenda and operate
under the GM Public Sector Reform Principles as outlined below:
 A new relationship between public services and citizens, communities and
businesses that enables shared decision making, democratic accountability
and voice, genuine co-production and joint delivery of services – ‘do with, not
to’
 An asset-based approach that recognises and builds on the strengths of
individuals, families and our communities rather than focussing on the
deficits
 Behaviour change in our communities that builds independence and
supports residents to be in control
 A place-based approach that redefines services and places individuals,
families, communities at the heart
 A stronger prioritisation of wellbeing, prevention and early intervention
 An evidence-led understanding of risk and impact to ensure the right
intervention at the right time
 An approach that supports the development of new investment and
resourcing models, enabling collaboration with a wide range of organisations

Page 74

4

Duties

4.1

The System Board will:
 set strategic direction and approve system health and care strategies
 align political, clinical and managerial leadership
 allocate and oversee high level resources across the NHS and local authority
 ensure achievement of set outcomes and ambitions

5

Status and authority

5.1

The status of the Shadow system Board in this initial phase is advisory and
developmental, with decision making through the existing Integrated
Commissioning Board

6

Accountability

6.1

The System Board will initially remain accountable to its constituent
organisations.

Over time as the ICS develops, it is anticipated that

accountabilities will shift towards the GM Health and Care partnership Board /
GM NHS Board where applicable, as one of the constituent organisations.
6.2

The System Board will establish such sub-groups as it considers necessary to
ensure the delivery of agreed outcomes. At present these system wide subgroups are:
 Finance, Performance and Risk Group
 Quality and Safety
 Workforce
 People and Place Partnership

Page 75

Appendix 2: Shadow System Board Appointments

Proposed Membership of the Shadow System Board


Independent Chair



Place Lead



4 x Elected Members: Leader, ASC, Health and Children



4 x Clinical representatives: PCN representative, CCG Clinical Chair,
Rochdale Care Organisation Medical Director, CCG Board level clinical
lead



4 x Chairs of sub-groups: FPR, Public Health, Quality and Safety,
workforce



4 x LCO members: LCO Chief Officer, LCO Independent Chair,
Primary Care representative, Mental Health representative



2 x CCG Lay Members



1 x NCA Non-Executive



ICS representative- to be determined

Supporting Officers:


Director of Commissioning / DASS



Section 151 Officer



Monitoring Officer



Director of Integrated Systems Development

Where a member cannot attend a meeting, the member can nominate a named
deputy to attend. Deputies must be able to contribute and make decisions on behalf
of the Party that they are representing. Deputising arrangements must be agreed
with the Chair prior to the relevant meeting.
Other members/attendees may be co-opted as necessary.

Page 76

Appendix 3: Greater Manchester ICS Draft Governance Arrangements

Page 77

Appendix 4: Existing Delegations to Strategic Place Board and Integrated
Commissioning Board
Current delegations to the Strategic Place Board
1.
Ensure that all available resources to support health improvement and
people’s quality of life are used efficiently and to their full potential.
2.
Lead an assessment of the health and wellbeing needs of the local population
and produce a high-level Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
3.
Develop a joint health and wellbeing strategy providing an overarching
framework and priorities identified for action within which commissioning plans for
the NHS, social care, public health and other health and wellbeing related services
will be developed;
4.
Shift the focus of services from crisis management to a preventative approach
at key points in the whole life course
5.
Challenge all partners to fully deliver their contribution to the Borough’s
priorities for health and wellbeing
6.
Lead joint working and ensure coherent and co-ordinated commissioning
strategies, including those of the NHS Commissioning Board.
7.
Provide public accountability for services that are directly related to the health
and wellbeing of the local population.
8.
Ensure all partners fully understand what outcomes the Board are working to
and use robust performance management structures to measure progress and
success.
9.
Maintain an oversight of the allocated public health budgets and how these
are spent.
10.
Pull together the commissioning activities of the NHS locally and the local
authority where this aligns with delivery of the joint health and wellbeing strategy
and, through integrated commissioning, require assurances form joint commissioning
structures of value for money and equity of access and outcomes.

Current delegations to the Integrated Commissioning Board
1.
Approval of the s75 Agreement in respect of the pooled fund, Better Care
Fund and implementation and monitoring of the Fund.

Page 78

